
GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE
CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC RECREATION

Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Addendum No.1
Issued: April 6, 2015

This Addendum Number 01 is issued bye-mail on April 6, 2015. Except as modified
hereby, the Request for Proposals ("RFP") remains unmodified.

Item #1

Sign-in Sheet: The sign-in sheet from the pre-proposal conference is attached.

Item #2

The solicitation number is hereby changed to DCAM-15-AE-0121.

Item #3

Offer Letter Attachment: Please see revised offer letter attachment.

Item #4

Phase 1 Archaeological Study: Phase I archaeological investigation is required that begins with
GIS cut-and-fill and geoarchaeological testing. The need for, and locations of Phase I testing,
will determined in consultation with District's Historic Preservation Officer (DC HPO). A work
plan approved by DC HPO is required before any field work starts. An archaeological resources
summary is attached.

Item #5

Site Visit: A site visit will be held on Tuesday, April 7!h at 1:00 pm. Please meet the
Department's Program Management team at the Project Site. Please bring a government issued
form of photo identification to comply with the facility's security procedures.

Item #6

The bid date remains unchanged. Proposals are due by April 21, 2015 at 2:00 pm EDT.
Proposals that are hand-delivered should be delivered to the attention of: Courtney Washington,
Contract Specialist, at Frank D. Reeves Center, 2000 14thStreet, NW, 8th floor, Washington,
DC 20009.

- End of Addendum No.1 -



IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK"NO"
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL! ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-OI21

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES h;J
Type of services performed: _ ____.A=I;!_L_\t)..:..l h-'--=-(...::....""_~_:>.(.:___S_~_Ci'_tJ_&{'-,--_'I:. _s_----.-.--.,.--
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? '{ c;,. PV,- VhL

Name:~L«Z.-- ~6 Phone: 2D'-. bZ7 '0~
Company:______::f:112I? 'f2-
Email Address: .Qi::. !'iorz'f2-- 'DC- e NO{l~ 'R - I'" <Q --

YES 07" NO 0
NO~

2.

Have you registered or the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ti
Is your company a certified business :nterprise? YES 1.;t
Type of services performed: -+}\yc--llLi.d.lI\-l-:\t.-L±C~c~blL:).-:~V'f'_~_"".~--;:- _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ~ rY1 roe
Name:~$ fl--a,;,:JL< Phone: 202 -333 -62.3{:)
Compar{)r:6j /IY.,_(L{,L J (BiE
Email Address:=.iL.lI.L(L;fk ('? .:£:, l4.a.vt ,ecru/(

3.

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES n
Is your company a certified bus~ess enterprise? YES ~
Type of services performed: EJ/'(.{Gi~ S~~ee,~
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontract; -€ =kd-cryr

Name: {(/>,)I' to). Phone: 2m 24l( Slot
l." ~ \;; Uu rl ",c:1t-, .:;;:t-

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES 'Q-

4.

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List?
Is your company a certified busin~s enterprise?
Type of services performed: ~6<17 7cr~

Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? OZ-I_ C
YES 0

NO 0
NO 0

NO 0
NO 0

NO 0
NO 0
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IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK"NOli
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL! ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1. Name: Su I1ftn'l exiJ.eu ~G\~
j 1

Company: NC.A - f\)(lY~o,. 0\
Email Address: __ =S:...;Cijd-Y'-==-':~---l....~=.:...J~:"=:'!";=~~="':"""":" _

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List?

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: L(J.:lL::!....0~"::r~~·:::::!::~1:::J.(J:::.1..~~~/:_\_.....",..,. _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? F'6""1 e.

YES g"

YES D

NO D
NO g-

2. Name: M C';/X:z....)tJ fJ\i fiAr0{L Phone: j_,b'1)'7\~1 -?S(?f{
Company: 1Qf;.PD GtSCfVe l"kG
Email Address: MSV\I\ lick -eOci.) b(') d~Yn\.J ~ . (QlIV\c
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D NO D

Is your company a certified bu iness enterprise? YES ri NO D
Type of services performed: Arl 16Je.Jv tco...l ..\- C f\.J\ 7\.
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? :;:fe5 Pc I'Me .

3. Name: Et\L.ulo~ ki\\\L Phone: $Y\- 710-0177
Company: ~ ex l}rc.\rI:~(09 {ACt'" c,h(. A..r0\A,±t ""'"'J
Email Address: (> \ i\ ;\r f:) ::::C',CVclC·COvv-l

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES 0 NOXJ

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES D
Type of services performed: Ac.\f. c--~l.J A ....c.Art.:\.<..A--
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ~ ,f ,'..h..g&

NO 0

4. Name:C t'2l S fAr2L--Elf Phone:$-Oq 557~t~~
Company: bQFEi'J luG L(J2_(3A~ ~ ~
Email Address: eHaI S L EAQ E.'""'@6([Uf\LING u..R(5A AI c. 0 v1
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~ NO 0

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES 0 NO ,fJ
Type of services performed: C 1V\ L- ErJ GI rJf;£T? vJ G ,5 v( tz.Jf?- '( (_ 1\ I•
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ----'S"'-----~~(S:::__ _
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IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK"NO"
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN
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DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL! ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: --,-~--,--=--.::::_:_:..:._\\---,,-U=_::\--,v_]\JL.=::..:3;,~ _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? -4-£...!.:~~M.....!,....J....!o...,_ _

Name: Li,~~+ Phone: .;{OJ--6-=t~_qolo
Company: ~~
Email Address: ~~v ~ V-G!n iIe z-{=::i, ~
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~ NO D

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES ~ NO D
Type of services performed: -A:< ~ i c:..~
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ? {Lt VY1 'C.-

1. Name:~'VY=/~L-vtUk . ~one~ m~~ d--/ft6
Company. ~ ~~ ~.tAf6 ~g{;:- G:._~
Email Address: [isPI £td/l2Gu:e Bc"-Sl(d(Vtf!"7V (CerYl/\....

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES ~
Type of services performed: ------"'G""".k.15.::I..c,-.....•2~ _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? S()It6r'tTetJC;;;fZ}£_

Name: tv'\a N"\.--' N (r- \._~E Phone: 2.0"2 - J 'B Co . \19.? 'Z.
Company: \-\\1 "" l-"f\-\J \) \ <:;,\J \) \0
Email Address: \'(\L~t:C9\ \\\1 i\f1 ~')\ <..\ ~ \) \V

2.

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES~

YES )i1

3.

4. Name: ~e..., Phone: 2dZ.-Z;g~-4~4S
Compa~L\:.c, ~c.~e.C/VIL.1 .)ut\l€;'t, (.".ANDSc:AP~
Email Address: ~jos.e..Q C)..w.~'t\~t~or~rg .GOo"'"
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES;;;

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES r:Ii('
Type of services performed: C,1,,7) J,,"lr(.,")) !1Av.4{tAf<4 (tI,)~S
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _ __:s.:=-v_IP _

NO D

NO D

NO D

NO D

NO D

NO D
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IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK"NOli
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL/ ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1. PAV~~~. Phone: 0/1. ,4£
Company: LL ,dufc
Email Address: dtWiJ .b~tl @c BtrlL Avclitrd'~ .~

Name: 7S7b _x.2ol

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: ____,Ac....:.,_""'...J.tfL-- _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ~r_!_!rlCfl'IItt~I:e'__----

Name: D~f\J'NIA~8rsr6l)vl Phone: lo?J -2-2-4--ll a%
Company: Mt1iA 5~)~<)') pc..
Email Address: d,CAStiI.I\@j\I\-ita... e""ij'\ (\-ee,r~ c..ovvv
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES 0

Is your company a certified business enterprise? -f YES ffi
Type of services performed: M6C.NA rJ\c...AL,.. '(..v ~'"GMc,o U
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ' V ~ L.o!\f("6tt:::l (:;! '¥--

Name:---+-''--L--=':____~---+-~----r- __ Phone: >0"'9 kultureoLs 2(1. -3f(S-&</VS-
Company: __ -="""~____JL_"_'_"",",--,,,-'--'-""-l.L.. ----._...-- _
Email Address:' __ f-I-I-~I-=;ll~~~~'-L..!...!...IooC:::"":~_:__(~ctu1~l.,__ _

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ti
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES ):J
Type of services performed: -/-l,ftVl~1A.Ll------"'-'-------
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? __,_E..l..[...!...!..:..f'Yl.!...<-=- _

~:;~ny: My raA"'+~ ~~~ Phone: 21P_ 62g \LID 1m)

Email Address: W\;;:'I\o...S3-a:_;:cQC:.¢..-~\V\Ren: - c.o'(\l)
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-rvlailing List? YES ~ NO 0

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES ® NO 0
Type of services performed: s\-DAckvn~< '£.vJ8\1As'!<'':'.f'h~
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _ ____s,js~u!lo..!b!o.L.:....' _

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~
YES ,e:f

2.

3.

4.

NO 0

NO 0

NO !)j
NO 0

NO 0

NO 0
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IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK"NO"
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL/ ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1. Name: 'DA-e.EE_LL. D' 8 &ElL Phone: 540 -.34,-49'StO
Company: PDI..)lSo ~ lLS
Email Address: do!, f:c:.).\ c'2epo Lyso L\ l(:<' of l!>eA
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES D
Type of services performed: '\&.8N.OI A{."I CQ ,,:>f:,l.)cr(~b
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _

2. Name: _ ___i.~~~~',-.?-:jLIt2Z.Z!!f::-:::_~
Company: ----h,__ __ --:f-.,.._~~"""""".......,~r__+....L.L..:....,_-----
Email Address :_-+--"'<.L~~'I-Lr~~_¥_.LL.I-=.L'-"-'"::....L.o..._____._,.,:L.....:...:::.:..:."_I__--

3.

Have you registered for the NO D

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES 'l&T NO kl
Type of services performed: ~e 4n:AtYz:c1t~ cf~
Interested in bidding as a prime or~t1'trctetor? A::¥th .

Name: ~U~ft kAtPJ Phone: :20~ -~O/;; -41J ~ (pI?oI--~g~:rJ18Z
Company: ttu f2[__~!) [ -s-ru () l-o
Email Address: LVALJ D i @,H1J1J1l..4VOl mPLD ~ lJO'i
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YE~ NO D

Is your com~any a certified business enterprise? ....:::1.1fS. NO D
Type of services performed: ~ - l!)Z.,f?It1VO~~
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? "

Name:::; ()..rel1G0 '5~vr.e
Company: _ ____,.__.'''-'-'........",_<-=><..___,_..~~...LL...:~..L......LL..I<:lo,.---' ••.••....••''-I....I.o'''''-'-..L..&.<!.....:..<.... __

Email Address: ...;;l...!...uU;:~:..L...~~L._~~~~t:....L!LL':"'_ _

Have you registered for the Constant ontact E-Mailing List? YES T&f
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES )\
Type of services performed: ,M ~ e-\-ye ef1@' (lee.c, "::)
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ~ u.,b

4.

NO D

NO D

page~ofl



IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK"NO"
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOUAN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL! ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1. Name: ~ F7-Cf;"rV\.A-0 ~A\p.. Phone: cAY!-- 2/8>t:.t~D07')
, A I

Company: Bq/-.,pdf Vi A 1f" ,Le(.
Email Address: M~e.-.A?-=i-::-(?t n---e:<q~ l..<k&. cD M

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES 0

YESM

NO DC

NO 0

2.

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: At?--k+i "P0-'vUV\:-
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? Yes _"?vr.A ~

Name: CY'1efV'> VeJ:e<' Phone: 202 -'10!;;- 7070
Company: C"'>' fJtN<<-...- sr"!; .W.,
Email Address: <:..••.~ezC; <.....s-<.Yl...q:<;AS. c~,
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES IlY" NO 0

YES e:( NO 0Is your company a certified busine s entelJ?ris ?
Type of services performed: _-F-..L.:-;:;;;.._;__':"....;._,;h=->- ...-r-- _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _-I-_r_~_.(_.=- _

3. Narne :____,,(l=-:J.."""--'-'--'-""~=-----""f"~~'-'-n-"""'__-
Company:_~~~~~~=¥~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Email Address: ~~~~==~+===~~~~~~~~-----
Have you registered for the Constant Contact -Mailing List? NO 0

Is your company a certified business enterprise? " YES~ NO 0
Type of services performed: 3A1UCVW~\vtQl ~Lrtk
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontIaCf6r? V ~,lr

4. Name: $\~t? Phone:~~~
Company: C ~ ~~ C;C'''6.1!tl\e- ~)
Email Address: L' ..,

YES ~
YES [I('

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List?

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: 6e.k~ t £VW\VQ\~\

Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ~",'o~

NO 0

NO 0

page_ior1_



IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK "NO"
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL/ ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1. Name: It- 'j'iCt.i I e~ C Phone: ('2.0'-) ~ g'2._-1~II
Company: A-Te 1 C·OtJ.sUCI;' "J& G7LeUp i ( L.. ~
Email Address: ,£T£L CO N$L1C'T'l N~g_OJf' t LaC:\
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ICY NO D
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES L:J NO D
Type of services performed: COST e?T~M,A;,~ M C.
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? 5", ($

2. Name:~(CC .1tt~ Phone: ...,...--__
Compan;r:l{)?JLn tttfK..Qtzn A'SWa.. ~ ~lt c\
Email Address: dIhYY't:?2 €dCllYl tl:'tnLptln. (OYVt
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D NO ~
Is your company a certified business enterprise? . YES ~ NO D
Type of services performed: C.wli tshvch.tttJ ?{)V"etr\Y\~ I rlJ\~CJ\;\
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? b-lt-t) Q ,.

3. Name:e~ p.ffi\'ILQ.U..K Phone: 5(D1~~O~-IO'Ho
Company: ;;aqC\'XlN1(,'froe(\b ur..
Email Address:L\6e.l..L4(oeA\ .•f..lu\. (Off)
Have you registered for the Consta~Contact E-Mailing List? YES.z( NO D
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES)2f NO D
Type of services performed: Col\,",*rud\(.)o (..l~ meat., S+'(\).(...·hA o! be~l~\'),&a\ec_hnlc.:\'
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _~6.uo..t:...b=- _

4. Name: (V(\T~AV Gf(..1M~L(;-t Phone: 2..01_1.44-8860 ~.(T. ~~
Company: :Mi!;i Me t;:f\)6lN~C-(t..S
Email Address: t\ ~r\ M ';)l:e~@ MC€ - de. I (.-or'\
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D NO«
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES 111" NO D
Type of services performed: Mep car-) SVLTIt w T
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? ,!(~ <; v IS~ vrRA-c T c:;{l....__

Page ~ orj_



IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST. PLEASE CHECK "NOli
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL/ ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1.

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES )(1 NO 0
Is your company a certified business enterprise? _ YES 'JMi NO 0
Type of services performed: ~A3tf;L -f/f!1!!~
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? "- =r7

/'

2, Name: £>'1\\ QJ c:ba\f&5?v\ Phone: 4\D "'£''13 ~ql c.{. {3
Company: E~a~o"V'\().l ~ \?\001.~~
Email Address:~ C &~ ~ u'Y' t!\.\$'''{; \p~V\."'~ t'').uf'-
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~ NO 0

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES 0 NO 0
Type of services performed: :s:t/Avi Sec" J ;~~~~~,$,
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor?~ L("CW.

3, Name: iMviJM4'H.ece'"jv Phone: ~3 2-'1'1 ZL:'~I
Company: .t3L!'/~ k ...
Email Address~.M1eC~bcJ./.ec ~7 C;o,....,
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES 0 NO ~
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES ~ NO 0
Type ofse~ic~s ~erformed:, C!ttl)ll£.,m-....G" ......•J\~J Sv ....v'~\-'7),&r,....-I ~ .I./-"'-:J
Interested m bidding as a pnme or a su15'contractof'?_;.Jl.::;_;;;_v,_i _

4, Name: Phone: 20'2 - 5" 'f R - 7S 70 x:.u 0---~~~_;_-.~-=~-----
Company:_~~~~~~~~~~~~_~ _
Email Address: tl,. L- ,+eel", r 7iC;IS" CO IV{

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES ~
Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES '9
Type of services performed: _-'-A_"c,=£.=tf..:....._, _

NO 0
NO 0

Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _ __;_H....:.,.(2___;",'_I-1_;__:c=- _

page!orl



IF YOU HAVEN'T JOINED OUR CONSTANT CONTACT EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST, PLEASECHECK 'WO"
BELOW AND WE WILL SEND YOU AN EMAIL INVITATION TO JOIN

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

***
ARCHITECTURAL! ENGINERING SERVICES FOR THE CENTER FOR THERAPEUTIC

RECREATION
Solicitation #: DCAM-15-AE-0121

Preproposal Conference
April 3, 2015
Sign-in Sheet

1. Name: ,~..em;·Pcv l(or'J.(j\~ fy(.. Phone:'707 -js7-~(;0-0
Company: ~~l r (?~ ~t.t.kt.b.
Email Address: ~!ft. ("611o.~(.TL (£\L~d· ~
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D NO ~

Is your company a certified business enterprise? YES ~ NO D
Type of services performed: ;Q<<;"~ 5ww
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subdfrltractor? ~ lZvi,I')II.:L7--~ J

2. Name: Phone: --------
Company: _
Email Address: _

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _

YES D

3. Name: Phone: _
Company: _
Email Address: _

Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: _
Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _

YES D

4. Name: Phone:-------------- ---------Company: _
Email Address: -----------------------
Have you registered for the Constant Contact E-Mailing List? YES D

Is your company a certified business enterprise?
Type of services performed: _

Interested in bidding as a prime or a subcontractor? _

YES D

NO D

NO D

NO D

NO D

NO D

NO D
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T. David Bell AlA. Lt:EDap BD+C

President OlO\J;!O 202.329.7278
office 202.548.7570 exl 201
81118'1 david.bell@BELLarchitects.com
weo www.BELLarchitects.com

1228 9th Street NW Washington, DC 20001

a woman owned
minority/disadvantaged business

9008 Brae Brooke Drive
Lanham, MD 20706

Lanshing Hwang,
RLA, CPSI
Principal

p. 202.595.1999
f.202.595.1998

e. lanshingh@symbiosis-Ia.com

M. Glenn Mitchell AlA, LEEDAP
Managing Principal

beddgroup architects + builders

1744 Taylor Street NW.Washington. DC 20011
0: 202.882.8139 I C: 202.577.3083
mgmitchell@beddgroup.com

dl"l i sovos» I DRI; i C;<l ! [lDO,

* * *--A DCCertified Business Enterprise
nSZ9344062014

LLC
CONSULTING ENGINEERS
AND LAND SURVEYORS

GREGORY A. JOSE
MARKETING MANAGER

1'I10Nt:: 2Q2-189-4545 I,' X 202-289·505/ 1:-,1/,111. gjo$<1[gI/IIlellcill~er",g.~O/ll
/U G smest; NE, SUITE 4]0 • W/ISIIINGTON. D 20002

I I STEPHEN F. PATT, P.E.
President

C: 571-238-0077
spatl@ecslimited.com

ECS CAPITOL SERVICES, PLLC
Geotechnical • Construction Materials • Environmental • Facilities

655 15th Street, NW, Lobby Level, Washington, DC 20005
T: 202-400-2188 • F: 202-478-1831

wWW.ecslimited.com

f Atelier Architecture
Planning
Interior Desi n

www.atelierarchitects.com

1003 K Street NW
Suite 330
Washington, DC 20001
tel. 202.898.9070 ext.13
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RFPfor Architect/Engineering Services
Center for Therapeutic Recreation (Attachment to Offer Letter)

Concept Design Fee

Schematic Design
Design Development

Permit Set
Construction Total Design Fee

Documents Documents (beyond Concept)

Renovation Design Fee $0.00
New Construction Design

Fee $0.00
Site Design Fee $0.00

Personnel Classification Hourly Rate

Principal in Charge
Design Principal
Project Arch itect
Staff Architect

Landscape Architect

Senior Mechanical Engineer
Mechanical Engineer
Senior Electrical Engineer
Electrical Engineer
Senior Structural Engineer
Structural Engineer

Permit Set Bid Package Breakout Price (from
Renovation Permit Set)

Hazardous Materials Abatement & Demolition
Demol ition/Raze

Breakout Price (from
Permit Set Bid Package New Construction

Permit Set)

Hazardous Materials Abatement
Demol ition/Raze
Foundation to Grade

PLEASE NOTE THE BID PACKAGE PRICES ARE BREAKOUT PRICES OF THI
PERMIT SET FEES AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO BE ADDITIONAL COSTS

PLEASE COMPLETE THE SHADED CELLS



Project Location:

Project Title:
Landmark/District:
Created:
Agency:
Staff Reviewer:

Project Data Request - Archaeology

Center for Therapeutic Recreation, 3030 G Street, SE,
Reservation 405, Washington, D.C.
Center for Therapeutic Recreation, SE
Fort Circle Parks HD, within Fort Dupont Park grounds
March 2015
DPRI DGS
Ruth Trocolli, Ph.D., SHPO Archaeologist
Charde Reid, Assistant Archaeologist

Archaeological Resources Summary:

Identified
Archaeological
Site(s)
Rresent?

Intensive
Archaeological
Survey
Conducted?

Archaeological
Potential?

**Potential
Resource Type

No. No, intensive
survey has not
yet taken place.

Yes, moderate-to-
high for prehistoric
and historic

Potential Paleosols,
Prehistoric Camps,
Historic Farms and/or
Plantations, Civil War
Camps, Contraband
Camp(s).

**This information is potentially sensitive and releasing it to the general public should not
occur without discussion with the SHPO due to looting and ARPA concerns.

Overview
Archaeological survey has not been conducted at the Center for Therapeutic
Recreation project area, therefore, it is unknown if archaeological resources are
present. Archaeological identification survey may be warranted prior to any
ground disturbing activities on the property; please consult the City Archaeologist
in the HPO on the need for archaeological investigations. Conducting a GIS cut-
and-fill analysis that compares baseline historic topographic data, such as the
1888 US Coast & Geodetic Survey topographic map data to current topography
is recommended because a former stream runs beneath the property in pipes,
and the stream bed was filled.

The whole area in and around the parcel has moderate to high prehistoric and
historic archaeological potential. Historically, the property was once much closer
to the Anacostia River shoreline, a favorable location for both prehistoric and
colonial occupations. Throughout the colonial period the area was only lightly
populated. It was not until the 19th century when the larger land grants were
subdivided that the area became more settled. The 1861 Boschke topographic
map (LaC, Figure 3) shows fields and a structure (farm house/ plantation?)
belonging to J.A. Smith within the boundaries of the park. Resources related to
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this ante-bellum occupation, as well as prehistoric occupations, are expected
where subsequent development has not destroyed them.

The project location is approximately a mile northwest of Fort Dupont. Fort
Dupont was built in the fall and winter of 1861-1862 to fill gaps in the Fort Circle
along the eastern approaches of the District. Fort Dupont supported a garrison of
300 infantry and 117 artillery troops, and was ultimately abandoned in 1865 when
the land was reverted back to its original owner (Cooling and Owen 2010:216).
Contraband camps were likely present in the general area during the war.

The area was subdivided but dwellings do not appear to be present in the project
parcel, however, by the late 1940s several large multi-family buildings (possibly
WWII housing?) were built within the park, but were demolished by 1957.

Resources Types
The area around the park would have been favorable for human occupation
throughout the prehistoric, contact, and historic periods, and remains from all
periods are expected where subsequent development has not caused a loss of
resources. Potential prehistoric resources include remains of a lithic workshop
and/ or quarry, or a habitation such as a camp or village. Civil War-related
resources including camps, ditches, and contraband camps as well as sites
related to early farms and plantations may also be present. The Potomac River's
stream terraces and floodplains were excellent locations for finding prehistoric
artifacts in the late 19th-early 20th centuries and the National Museum of Natural
History, Smithsonian Institution has large collections from the area. Lithic
quarries may be present in upland stream valleys. Soils are present in or near
the project area that may date from the Paleoindian time period, identified on the
Figure 2 as "potential paleosols"; these areas may warrant deep testing. See
Wagner (2011) for some background on the subject.

Archaeological survey in locations where deeply buried resources may be
present usually begins with geoarchaeological testing. This is a minimally-
destructive, efficient, and cost-effective way to quickly identify whether buried
deposits with archaeological potential are present. Locations that have been
buried with fill, either purposely or through natural processes may warrant deep
testing if the limits of disturbance of the project extend to potentially intact soil
horizons beneath the fill. Mechanical testing may be needed to penetrate the fill
or other deposits. Traditional shovel testing and similar means of site
identification can be used in locations where the base of the fill is within the reach
of hand-excavated tests. Close coordination with the DC City Archaeologist is
needed to develop an acceptable work plan. In no case should any work
proceed without consultation and submission of a work plan for review and
approval by the DC SHPO.

See Historic Contexts for the District of Columbia (1991) for a summary of
identified contexts. For recent prehistoric overviews see Berger (2008), Knepper
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et al. (2006), and Versar (2013) (Reports 352, 201, and 560, respectively). The
DC HPO web site has a link to a web tour on urban archaeology called
"Washington Underground: Archaeology in Downtown Washington, DC" that
includes information on District archaeology.

Resource Data:
Below is a GIS map (Figure 1) showing historic resources within approximately
one half mile of the project area boundary and two data tables (Tables 1-2),
followed by a list of report references. The map includes historic districts,
archaeological sites (as points only), and polygons showing archaeological
surveys. Basic archaeological site data are shown in Table 1. The survey
polygons are keyed to the survey report number, which can be looked up in the
survey data (Table 2) below, outlining project information. A second map (Figure
2) shows sites, Civil War fort locations, potential paleosols, and stream courses
reconstructed from historic topographic maps including the 1793 Ellicott (LOC),
1861 Boschke (LOC), and 1888 USC&GS series (NOAA).

Please note that all levels of archaeological survey are included on Figure 1; the
presence of a survey polygon does not imply that the survey depicted has
identified all archaeological resources present, or that the survey complied with
or met District and/or Federal standards for conducting archaeological
investigations. A second caution is also in order regarding archaeological sites;
precise locations do not exist for many of the prehistoric sites reported in the late
19th-through mid-20th centuries. The point locations shown for the early sites
are approximations only and many have not been ground-truthed or even
relocated. Temporary archaeological sites numbers, e.g., P14, P15, H12, are
provisional numbers for locations that may warrant assigning a trinomial, but
additional research and/or documentation is needed or pending. The site data
are also keyed to the list of reports. The report references are in SAA format and
are in report number order.

Please contact us if you have any questions of need additional information, site
forms, or survey reports. See the DC HPO web site for information on other
historic resources, including historic districts, and landmarks. The annotated
1998 Guidelines for Conducting Archaeological Investigations in the District of
Columbia is available on the archaeology page of the HPO web site.

http://planning.dc.gov/page/archaeology-district-columbia
http://planning.dc.gov/page/landmarks-and-districts

The web tour is available at:
http://www.heritage.umd.edu/chrsweb/dc%20archaeology/DC%20Archaeology%
20Tour/Archaeology%20Tour.htm
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Archaeological Sites and Surveys near the Center for Therapeutic Recreation
Legend
-- Street Centerlines • P

Water Survey Type
Office of Planning - March 2015

National Parks 0 Phase IA

DC Parks ~ Phase I Reconnaissance

c::::J Historic Districts rrrrm Phase I Intensive

D TRCenter ~ Phase II

Archaeological Site TypeEl Phase III

o H

•y Government ofthe District of Columbia

This map was created for planning purposes
from a variety of sources. It is neither a
survey nor a legal document, Information
provided by other agencies should be
verified with them where appropriate.

* * *-
• HP

Figure 1. GIS map showing historic resources within Ii mile of the Center for
Therapeutic Recreation (TR Center); data are keyed to tables 1-2, below.
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Archaeological Sites and Historic Resources near the Center for
Therapeutic Recreation

Legend

-- Street Centerlines Historic Water Feature • P
Office of Planning - March 2015

Water

National Parks

Bridge

-- Shoreline

-- Stream or ditch

•y Government ofthe District of Columbia

This map was created for planning purposes
from a variety of sources. It is neither a
survey nor a legal document, Information
provided by other agencies should be
verified with them where appropriate.

* * *- DC Parks

D TRCenter -- Wharf

D Historic Cemetery Archaeological Site Type

D Potential Paleosol 0 H

• HP

Figure 2. Historic Resources near the Center for Therapeutic Recreation including
soils with paleosol potenial (cf. Wagner 2011) and stream courses reconstructed from
historic maps (1888 US Coast & Geodetic Survey, sheet 49 - NOAA dc3149c ).
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Figure 3. 1861 Boschke (LOC).
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200 yards below
east bend of
Baltimore &
Potomac Railroad Contact,
bridge of Bruce Powell other

51SE003 Anacostia ma NPS BP20,S92 CRM Su HP Not evaluated?
East of Anacostia
River; West of UID
Kenilworth; North prehistoric.
of Pennsylvania Bruce Powell NPS - Bruce Not

51SE005 Railroad ma NPS BP19 HP Not evaluated relocated.
UID

North of PA Ave prehistoric,
Bridge; near Smithsonian

51SE014 corner of Nash PI Twinin P Not evaluated? collections
West side UID
Anacostia Smithsonian - prehistoric,
Freeway/2000 feet Peter Smithsonian

51SE020 east of PA Ave Collection Twinin #1 P Not evaluated? collections
West side of UID
Anacostia Freeway Smithsonian - prehistoric,
2800 feet east of Peter Smithsonian

51SE022 PAAve Collection Twining #2 P Not evaluated? collections
Near 30th and L UID
btwn Anacostia Smithsonian - prehistoric,
Frwy & Randle Peter Smithsonian

51SE023 Circle Collection Twinin 3 P Not evaluated? collections
Eastside Anacostia Engineering-
Freeway 500 feet S Science 1989, Eligible. Portions
of East Capitol St, 149,150, 90; Versar Barney Circle destroyed by data Late Archaic,

51SE025 400 feet long 560 2013 Freeway HP recovery historic farm
West of Dubois PI
on East Bank River. Barney Circle?
Not in any Barney Not Barney Circle UID

51SE027 Re rt mentioned ? P Not evaluated rehistoric.



West of Anacostia
River, east of DC
Gen Hospital Barney Circle
access via RFK Engineering- (indef Freeway NPS UID

51SE030 Stadium lot 149 Science 1990 prehistoric) owns P prehistoric.
LA-EW; EW-

West of Anacostia MW; Late
River, Behind Bldg Eng-Sci 1989, Barney Circle eligible as part of 18th-E. 19th
25 DCGen, 90; Versar Freeway NPS 51SE32. Part c. farm &

51SE031 Anacostia Park 149,560 2013 owns HP de Ph III Wharf
West of river east
of Congressional (LA, EW-MW
Cemetery in Eng-Sci 1989, Barney Circle base camp;
Anacostia Park. 90; Versar Freeway NPS eligible. Part 20th c.

51SE032 See 51SE31 560 2013 owns HP de Ph III scatter
West of Anacostia
River, east of Barney Circle
Cemetery, Engineering- Freeway NPS UID

51SE033 Anacostia Park 149 Science 1990 owns P rehistoric.
BP19 on Bruce
Powell Map. NPS - Bruce

BP19 Prehistoric cam Powell 1966 P rehistoric.
Mr. Foley's Farm - May be
Armistead Peter Email Krakker Twining 1,2, UID

P20 Coil. Smithsonian 2010 or 3 P Prehistoric
Mr. Foley's Farm -
Armistead Peter May be
Coil. Smithsonian, Email Krakker Twining 1,2, UID

P20 W. Lot 2010 or 3 P Prehistoric
Table 1. Continued.
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Northeast Boundary Swirl Phase I Associates for Res. 13 &
Facili at Res. 13 Reconnaissance 83 84 WASA Section 106 nea
Northeast Boundary Swirl
Facility - Res. 13 [Smallpox Oelon Hampton
hospital & cemetery - not Associates for
fou Phase I Intensive 84 83 WASA Section 106 Res 13
Anacostia Park Historical
Stud Intensive Archival 88 0 NPS Section 110? Multi
Correctional Treatment Phase I 104, lOS, OCOept Public Eng-Sci 1986 (Artemel Reservation
Facil Phase I Reconnaissance 103 107 Works & Crowel Section 106 13

Barn Circle Phase II Phase II 149 150,560 OOOT/ FHWA
Engineering-Science

Barn Circle Phase II Phase II 150 149 560 OOOT FHWA 1989 Artemel et al.
WSSCAnacostia Force Main
approx. APE from 1986 Phase I
WASAma Reconnaissance 203 0 WSSCand NPS Hume 1975 Section 106 Multi
Anacostia Basin
Environmental Restoration,
Ki an Lake & wetlands Intensive Archival 279 278 USACE Section 106

Straughan
Anacostia River Walk Trail, Environmental Services 1152 &
Res. 343F, 1152 & 1149 Phase I Intensive 380 0 NPS& OOOT 2008 1149
Geoarchaeology Testing in 4
Areas for OCWASA LTCP, Straughan
BAFB, Poplar Point, Phase I Environmental & Geo-
Anacostia Par Gen.Ho Reconnaissance 435 0 OCWater WASA Sci 2010 Section 106 Multi
Popes Branch Park, M PI, M
St, N St, Pope St, and Nash Multi, Res.
PI, SE, Res 624 Phase I Intensive 479 0 OOOE,OPR Otte 624
Barney Circle Freeway Tra nsportation
Project Ph. III at 51SE025, Enhancement
51 51SE03 51SE032 Phase III 560 149 150 OOOT HWA Grant multi
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Areas Reconnaissance

83,84,
88,142,
149,279,

586 435, 608 DCWater Stantec 2014 (DRAFT) Section 106

Phase IA NE Boundary
Tunnel Construction Staging Phase I

Table 2. Continued.
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Report References (in number order):
Taylor, Randolph K.
1984 Archival Investigation of the Proposed Northeast Boundary Swirl Facility, Washington, D.C.
Prepared by Thunderbird Archeological Associates, Inc., Front Royal, Virginia, and Delon Hampton
Associates, Washington, D.C., for O'Brien and Gere Engineers, Hyattsville, Maryland. D.C. SHPO
Archaeological Report # 083.

Taylor, Randolph K.
1984 Archeological Investigation of the Proposed Northeast Boundary Swirl Facility in the Vicinity of
Robert F. Kennedy Stadium, Washington, D.C. Prepared by Thunderbird Archeological Associates,
Inc., Front Royal, Virginia, and Delon Hampton Associates, Washington, D.C., for O'Brien and Gere
Engineers, Hyattsville, Maryland. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 084.

Bromberg, Francine Weiss, Ray Wood, Catherine Toulmin, Elizabeth Crowell, Janice G. Artemel,
Madeleine Pappas, Cynthia Pfanstiehl, and Teresa Kacprowicz
1989 Anacostia Park From a Historical and Archaeological Perspective. Prepared by Engineering-
Science, Inc., Washington, D.C. for the Fleming Corporation De Leuw, Cather Professional
Corporation, Washington, D.C. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 088.

Artemel, Janice G., and Elizabeth A. Crowell
1986 Correctional Treatment Facility Washington, D.C., Archaeological Reconnaissance Survey.
Prepared by Engineering-Science, Inc., Washington, D.C., for the District of Columbia Department of
Public Works Design, Engineering & Construction Administration. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report
# 103.

Miller, Marcia M., Elizabeth A. Crowell and Janice G. Artemel
1987 Correctional Treatment Facility, Washington, D.C. Phase II Archeological Studies Report No.
1. Prepared by Engineering-Science, Inc., Washington, D.C. for the Gilbane Building Co./Sherman
R. Smoot and the District of Columbia Department of Public Works Design, Engineering &
Construction Administration. D.C.SHPO Archaeological Report # 104.

Engineering-Science, Inc.
1987 Correctional Treatment Facility, Washington, D.C. Phase II Archeological Studies Report No.
2. Prepared by Engineering-Science, Inc., Washington, D.C. for the Gilbane Building Co./Sherman
R. Smoot and the District of Columbia Department of Public Works Design, Engineering &
Construction Administration. D.C.SHPO Archaeological Report # 105.

Toulmin Catherine, Dennis Knepper, and Elizabeth A. Crowell
1990 Correctional Treatment Facility Washington, D.C. Phase III Archeological Investigations.
Prepared by Engineering- Science, Inc., Washington, D.C. for Gilbane Building Co./Sherman R.
Smoot, Joint Venture and the District of Columbia Department of Public Works Design, Engineering &
Construction Administration. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 107.

Thomas, Ron
1979 Cultural Resources Reconnaissance Investigations For The Metropolitan Washington Area
Water Supply Study, Early Action Report. Prepared by Mid-Atlantic Archaeological Research, Inc.,
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Newark, Delaware for Corps of Engineers, Planning Division Baltimore District and USACE. D.C.
SHPO Archaeological Report # 142.

Bromberg, Francine, Holly Heston, and E. Goodman
1990 Barney Circle Phase II Archaeological Studies Report of Investigations No.2. Prepared by
Engineering- Science, Inc. for Fleming-DeLeuw, Washington, D.C. D.C. SHPO Archaeological
Report # 149.

Artemel, Janice, E. Crowell, E. Flanagan, and F. Bromberg
1989 Barney Circle Phase II Archaeological Studies. Prepared by Engineering- Science, Inc. for
Fleming Corporation and DeLeuw Cather Professional Corporation, Washington, D.C. D.C. SHPO
Archaeological Report # 150.

Hume, Gary W.
1975 Report on the Inventory and Pre-Construction Reconnaissance Survey of Archaeological
Resources on and Near the Proposed 108" Anacostia Force Main from Prince Georges County,
Maryland to Blue Plains Treatment Plant Across Lands Administered by National Capital Parks,
National Park Service, Within Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission Contract Areas B, C, 0
and E. Prepared by the Department of Anthropology of George Washington University, Washington,
D.C., for the Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission, Washington, D.C., and the U.S. Dept. of
the Interior, National Park Service, National Capital Parks, Office of Cooperative Activities,
Washington, D.C. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 203.

US Army Corps of Engineers
1990 Anacostia River Basin Reconnaissance Study. Prepared by US Army Corps of Engineers
Baltimore District for US Army Corps of Engineers and Committee on Public Works and
Transportation, U.S. House of Representatives. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 278.

Baumgardt, Kenneth
1994 A Phase I1II Cultural Resource Survey for the Anacostia River Basin Environmental
Restoration Project, Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, Maryland, and Washington, District
of Columbia. Prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Baltimore District. D.C. SHPO
Archaeological Report # 279.

Straughan Environmental Services, Inc.
2006 Phase I Archaeological Identification Study for Design Section 2 of the Anacostia Riverwalk
Trail, Washington, D.C. Prepared by Straughan Environmental Services, Inc., Columbia, Maryland,
for the D.C. Department of Transportation and the National Park Service, National Capital Parks East,
Washington, D.C. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 380.

Wagner, Daniel P.
2011 Long Term Control Plan (LTCP) for Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Geoarch. Prepared by
Geo-Sci Consultants, Inc., University Park, MD, for Straughan Environmental Services, Inc.,
Columbia, Maryland, and District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority. D.C. SHPO Archaeological
Report # 435.
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Franz, Karl and Thomas Bodor
2011 Phase I Archeological Survey for the Stream Restoration and Sewer Line Rehabilitation
Project (10-383), Popes Branch Park, Texas Ave to Fairlawn Ave, SE, Washington, District of
Columbia. Prepared by The Ottery Group, Inc., Olney, Maryland for Delon Hampton & Associates,
Silver Spring, Maryland, the District of Columbia Department of the Environment, and the District of
Columbia Department of Parks and Recreation. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 479.

Versar, Inc. [DRAFT]
2013 Native American Occupation in the Anacostia River Valley: The Barney Circle Freeway
Modification Archaeological Study, Washington, D.C. Prepared by Versar, Inc., Springfield, Virginia
for District of Columbia Historic Preservation Office and District of Columbia Department of
Transportation. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 560.

Kreisa, Paul P., Jacqueline M. McDowell, and Nancy L. Powell [DRAFT]
2014 Phase IA Archaeological Assessment of the D.C. Water: Northeast Boundary Tunnel Project.
Prepared by Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (formerly Greenhorne & O'Mara, Inc.), Laurel, Maryland
for D.C. Water and Sewer Authority. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 586.

Kreisa, Paul P., Jacqueline M. McDowell, Nancy Powell [DRAFT]
2014 District of Columbia Inventory of Historic Sites / National Register of Historic Places Evaluation
of 51NE048 for the DC Water Northeast Boundary Tunnel Project. Prepared by Stantec Consulting
Services, Inc., Laurel, Maryland for D.C. Water and Sewer Authority. D.C. SHPO Archaeological
Report # 608.

Other References:

Cooling III, Benjamin Franklin and Walton H. Owen, III
2010 Mr. Lincoln's Forts: A Guide to the Civil War Defenses of Washington. Lanham, Maryland:
Scarecrow Press, Inc.
Historic Preservation Division
1991 Historic Contexts for the District of Columbia: An Outline of Thematic Units for the Study of
Historic Resources in the District of Columbia. D.C. Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs,
Washington, D.C.

Knepper, Dennis, J. Rutherford, D. Hayes, C. Shields, and C. Bowen
2006 The Archaeology of an Urban Landscape, The Whitehurst Freeway Archaeological Project
Volume I: Prehistoric Sites. Prepared by Parsons and Versar, Inc. for the D.C. Department of
Transportation and the National Park Service, National Capital Region, Washington, D.C. DC SHPO
Archaeological Report # 201.

Smith, Horace
1976 Soil Survey of District of Columbia. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service
in cooperation with the U.S. Dept. of the Interior, National Park Service, National Capital Parks.
Washington, D.C.
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Wagner, Daniel P.
2011 Geoarchaeological Interpretations of Silty Soils Across the Grounds of the West Campus, St.
Elizabeth's Hospital, Washington, D.C. Prepared by Geo-Sci Consultants, LLC, University Park,
Maryland, for Greenhorne & O'Mara, Inc. Laurel, Maryland and the General Services Administration,
National Capital Region, Washington, D.C. D.C. SHPO Archaeological Report # 472.

Recommended Map and Archive References:

1. Five series of Baist maps are digitized and available for free on the LOC web site, from 1903-1921.
http://memory.loc.gov/cgi-
bin/query/S?ammem/gmd:@OR%28@field%28TITLE+@od1 %28Baist%27s+real+estate+atlas+of+s
urveys+of+Washington,+District+of+Columbia+++%29%29+@field%28AL TTITLE+@od1%28Baist%
27s+real +estate+atlas+of+surveys+of+Wash ington, +District+of+Col umbia+++%29%29%29

2. NOAA historical maps & charts has the whole 1888 USC&GS topo series and the 1861 Boschke
topos for DC, as well as many other area maps. (Search using DC & map year).
http://historicalcharts.noaa.gov/h istoricals/h istorical_ zoom .asp

3. LOC also has versions of the 1857 & 1861 Boschke topos and a tiled version of the 1892 USC&GS
topos (same as 1888 but a later engraving).
1888/1892: http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3850m.gct00007
1861 Boschke (county): http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3850.cw0678500
1857 Boschke (City): http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3850.ct001206

http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3850.ct002292

4. The LOC has scanned two series of Sanborns for DC, 1888 and 1903. These are full-color, high
res scans of the original volumes.
http://www.loc.gov/rr/geogmap/sanborn/city.php?CITY=Washington&stateID=1 0

5. My favorite Civil War map _ what we refer to as "Barnard 1865 Defenses of DC." The Civil War
forts & earthworks were added to the 1861 Boschke topo, and it was colored (hand tinted?) making it
easier to read. Unfortunately the LOC taped the sheets together with wide joins so it is a bit off. I have
georeferenced parts of it for specific projects, though, and use it to better understand the Boschke
topos.
Barnard 1865: http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3851s.cw0676000
Boschke 1861: http://hdl.loc.gov/loc.gmd/g3850.cw0678500

6. Historic aerial photos:
http://www.historicaerials.com

7. Historical Society of Washington Kiplinger Library catalog:
http://www.historydc.org/Do_Research/research.asp

8. DC Public Library Catalog (and list of 100 critical history books on DC)
http://citycat.dclibrary.org/uhtbin/cgisirsi/EiDcFV8wuN/ML-KING/55670316/28/1181 IX
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9. The DC Surveyors Office has many historic maps digitized and available in their office on public
access terminals. They are located at 1100 4th St. SW, 3rd Floor. They close at 4pm _ bring a
flashdrive to download the high res scans.

10. National Archives catalog:
http://www.archives.gov/research/

11. USGS Library, Reston, Virginia Catalog:
http://igsrglib03.er.usgs.gov:80801

12. Smithsonian Institution Library Catalog:
http://siris-Iibraries.si.edu/

13. Historical Maps from many sources in one place _ in both jpg & tif formats.
http://www.dcvote.org/trellis/character/historicalmaps.cfm

14. USGS Historial Topo Map Downloader:
http://cida.usgs.gov/hqsp/apex/f?p=262:18:544237786303117::NO:RP:P18_STATE,P18_SCALE,P18
MAP NAME:DC%2C%25%2C
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